CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS REGARDING THE CITY’S REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
(RFP) FOR A RESIDENT CURATORSHIP FOR THE FLANDERS MANSION

NOTE: Please acknowledge receipt of these questions in your cover letter in your
proposal.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Curatorship, Terms and Financing
1. Question: Is this [the curatorship] a paid position with a budget or is the City looking for
a group to step in and restore the property?
Answer: The curatorship is not a paid position. There is no City budget for the
curatorship. The City is looking for individuals or groups that will repair and update the
building’s critical systems; historically renovate the building and grounds and then
maintain the property for a minimum term of twenty (20) years in exchange for the rentfree use of the property as a single-family residence. While groups are not precluded
from submitting a proposal, the Mansion must be used exclusively as a single-family
residence. The City may not consider proposals that suggest other alternative uses,
such as a multi-family or group home, office, meeting or conference space, or the use of
the Mansion for special events.
2. Question: What are the terms for the curator? Is it possible for the curator to pass the
curatorship to another person(s) i.e.: children, spouse or partner as part of the curator’s
estate on their demise?
Answer: As outlined within the RFP, the length of the curatorship is twenty (20) years. In
exchange for the curator's financial investment in upgrading, renovating and maintaining
the Mansion, the curator and his/her immediate family, defined as the curator’s parents,
grandparents, children, grandchildren, spouse or partner, will be allowed to live in the
Mansion without paying rent to the City. The curator, or his or her heir, will be
responsible for maintaining the house and immediate grounds, paying utilities and any
applicable taxes and must return the property to the City in good repair and order
(normal wear and tear excluded) at the end of the curatorship.
The City is not allowing a curator to sublet (i.e. to rent or otherwise allow someone other
than the curator's immediate family to live within the Mansion). However, while the
ability to transfer a curatorship will be contingent on Council approval, the City is open to
the possibility of allowing a transfer to the curator’s immediate family or estate in case of
the curator’s demise.
In the likelihood of this situation occurring, the new curator would be subject to the same
terms and conditions of the original lease agreement and require an immediate family
member resides within the Mansion. The family member would be required to: (1)
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successfully pass a background check and (2) have the financial resources to either
continue the upgrades and restoration work and/or maintain the Mansion and grounds if
the work has already been completed for the remainder of the curatorship term.
3. Question: What does use as a “single family residence” mean? For example, could I
have a home office or operate a non-profit within the Mansion if I also live there?
Answer: According to the City’s Municipal Code, a single-family residence contains
only one kitchen, designed for or used to house not more than one family – including all
domestic employees of the family – and associated facilities for parking, living, sleeping,
cooking, and eating. Pursuant to City Municipal Code section 17.08.050, home based
businesses are permitted, but are limited by the following restrictions: (1) Are limited to
office machines such as telephone and/or computer use; (2) Do not involve deliveries
more frequently than once per week; (3) Do not involve parking, use or storage of any
commercial vehicles; (4) Do not involve visits by customers, vendors, attendees, sales
people or employees of the business; and (5) Are fully contained within one or two
rooms in a single-family dwelling and are not located in a garage.
4. Question: Is the curator allowed to have pets?
Answer: Domestic animals, such as dogs or cats, will be allowed. The residential
curatorship lease agreement will include provisions to ensure that the curator takes
proper measures so that the animal does not damage the Mansion and the surrounding
area, including the Mission Trail Nature Preserve.
5. Question: What are the insurance requirements for the curator?
Answer: The curator will, at his/her sole cost and expense, maintain property coverage
on any and all of their own furnishings and other personal property placed by them on or
in the Premises (Mansion, garage, shed and surrounding grounds). This policy shall
include coverage for additional living expenses in the event of an occurrence making the
Premises uninhabitable.
The curator will also maintain, at his/her sole cost and expense, comprehensive
personal liability coverage insuring against loss or liability in connection with bodily
injury, death, property damage or destruction arising out of the use of the Premises by
the Curator or his/her family, agents, contractors, licensees, personal guests or invitees
under a policy or policies of insurance having such limits as are reasonable required by
the City from time to time. For discussion purposes, the minimum policy limit is $1 million
per occurrence and $2 million in the aggregate; however, the limit will be subject to
negotiation with the selected curator and such limits may vary over the length of the
curatorship term. The comprehensive personal liability coverage shall (a) name the City
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as an additional insured on the policy, (b) be considered primary and non-contributory
with respect to any other insurance carried by the City, (c) provide at least thirty (30)
days prior written notice to the City before cancellation, non-renewal or material change
to the policy, and (d) be issued by an insurer of recognized responsibility licensed to
issue such policy in the State of California.
All contractors and subcontractors will be required to meet City insurance requirements
of Commercial General Liability Insurance including but not limited to premises, personal
injuries, bodily injuries, property damage, products, and completed operations, with a
combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the
aggregate; Professional Liability Insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence or claim and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; Automobile Liability Insurance
covering all automobiles, including owned, leased, non‑owned, and hired automobiles,
used in providing services to the curator with a combined single limit of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence; and Workers' Compensation insurance in accordance with
California Labor Code section 3700 and with a minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence.
A builder’s risk insurance policy and a construction bond (or escrow account) for a
minimum amount of $300,000 will be required for five years and/or until the work to
update the building’s critical systems is satisfactorily completed.
6. Question: Will either Federal or State historic tax credits apply to this project (i.e. will the
property be eligible for tax credits to me as an individual)?
Answer: The City recommends that a prospective curator consult his/her own tax
consultant regarding this question as well as the National Park Service, IRS and/or the
State Historic Preservation Office. However, it is the City’s opinion that the federal
rehabilitation tax incentive program would not apply to the Flanders Mansion, as the
curator would use the Mansion as his/her single-family residence. According to the
National Park Service (https://www.nps.gov/tps/tax-incentives/before-you-apply.htm)
there are four factors to consider in determining whether a rehabilitation project would
meet the requirements for the federal rehabilitation tax incentive program. One factor
specifies, “after rehabilitation, the historic building must be used for an income-producing
purpose for at least five years”. As no income is being produced, the incentive program
would not apply to the curatorship.
7. Question:
a. Under the Duration and Cost section of the RFP there is the following statement:
“. . . the curator will also be responsible for any fees, possessory interest taxes,
utilities, and building and grounds maintenance costs . . ..” I am especially
interested in learning more about the general term “fees” and the possessory
interest tax referenced in the RFP.
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b. Is there a present (annual) estimate of the possessory interest taxes that the
curator will be obligated to pay during the curating term (reference, page 12 of
the RFP)?
c. Is there a present valuation (of the curator's interest) upon which such taxes
would be based?
d. As work is completed on the property, would that valuation of the taxable
possessory interest increase?
Answer: The City is not aware of any fees that are applicable to the curatorship. A
taxable possessory interest is created when real estate owned by a government agency
is leased, rented, or used by a private individual or entity for their own exclusive use.
Prospective curators should anticipate that occupancy of the Flanders Mansion will be
subject to a possessory interest tax. The valuation of the property for the purpose of
calculating this tax will be made by the Monterey County Assessor’s office and the City
does not have the ability to influence that valuation. The last appraisal (received by the
City in 2011) valued the Flanders Mansion in its then current condition at $1,100,000.
That appraised value is not determinative of the current value on which the Assessor will
base calculation of the possessory interest tax.
Once the Assessor has established a base year value, the taxable value of the
possessory interest may be increased up to 2% per year thereafter (Revenue and
Taxation Code section 51). Under the provisions of Revenue and Taxation Code
sections 70 and following, the possessory interest tax is also subject to increase in the
event of “new construction,” which is defined to include any major rehabilitation of the
property. The way in which the Assessor treats any particular construction activity may
be determined in part by whether it can be characterized as repair, replacement,
remodeling, rehabilitation, modernization, or renovation.
Guidance provided by the State Board of Equalization indicates that normal
maintenance and repair is not considered new construction and does not trigger an
increase in the possessory interest tax. Maintenance performed on real property is
normal when it is regular, standard, and typical. Installation of new items that replace
old items but provide similar function is not typically considered assessable new
construction. Painting and roof replacement are examples of maintenance and repair
items. Similarly, replacements made as a part of normal maintenance and which do not
make the entire improvement substantially equivalent to new don’t trigger increases in
the possessory interest tax.
The State Board of Equalization considers “remodeling” to be changing the plan, form, or
style of a structure by removing a portion and substituting another of like utility. If new
square footage or fixtures are not added, the remodeling may not constitute assessable
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new construction. However, if a remodeling project is extensive or includes substantial
changes to the plumbing system, electrical system, framing or foundation, and changes
the effective age of a building by extending its usable life, the remodeling may be
considered the “substantial equivalent” of a new structure. In that case, the remodeled
portion may be reassessed.
The State Board of Equalization considers “rehabilitation” to be the restoration of a
property to satisfactory condition without changing the plan, form, or style of the
property. If a rehabilitation project makes a structure substantially equivalent to new, it
may qualify as assessable new construction. Whether new construction activity
transforms an improvement or a portion thereof into a condition that is substantially
equivalent to new is a factual determination to be made on a case-by-case basis.
In the view of the State Board of Equalization, “modernization” means taking corrective
measures to bring a property into conformity with changes in style (whether exterior or
interior) or additions necessary to meet standards of current demand. For property tax
purposes, modernization implies curing functional obsolescence and physical
deterioration to the degree that the structure becomes substantially equivalent to new. If
the modernization work results in like-new condition, then the modernized portion of the
property may be subject to reassessment.
The State Board of Equalization defines “renovation” to be the making of property into
like new condition. Work that results in the property being transformed into like new
condition could trigger reassessment of the renovated portion of the property.
Inasmuch as each property and construction activity is unique, the City cannot predict
how the Assessor will apply any guidance from the State Board of Equalization with
regard to work conducted at the Flanders Mansion or assure whether the Assessor will
consider any particular work to trigger an increase in the possessory interest tax. The
City is working with the County Assessor's Office to provide an estimate of the present
taxable possessory interest and the City will update the response to this question when
the estimate is available at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
8. Question: In order to fundraise, would I be allowed to name rooms within the Mansion
after my donors?
Answer: City Policy No. 89-41, “Acceptance of Donations and Gifts to the City”, states
that “no plaque or other identification may be attached to any gift or donation that is
placed in any public building or in the public right of way without specific authorization of
the City Council.” Although the donation is being made to the prospective curator (rather
than directly to the City), since the Mansion is still owned by the City, the placing of
plaques or other permanent fixtures to the Mansion would require the approval of the
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City Council and would be stipulated within the residential curatorship agreement with
the selected curator.
9. Question: Will the financial disclosure form be made public? Will my financial statement
be held in strict confidentiality or subject to public scrutiny and available pursuant to the
California Public Records Act?
Answer: The City believes that the public interest served by not disclosing financial
statements submitted by potential curators outweighs the public interest in disclosing
those statements and on the basis of Government Code section 6255(a) does not intend
to make the financial statements public, but the City cannot assure that a reviewing court
would take the same view. Accordingly, prospective curators should anticipate that if a
request to inspect or copy financial statements is made under the California Public
Records Act the City may be compelled to publicly disclose the documents.
10. Question: Will there be an opportunity for an additional open house and/or for private
showings/tours for interested applicants?
Answer: The interior of the premises was open to all interested parties on Friday,
November 9 and on Saturday, November 17, 2018. No other open houses are planned.
Access to the exterior and grounds are open to the public at all times.
Should the City decide to hold another open house, information regarding the date and
time will be posted on the City’s website.
The purpose of the open house is to (1) allow prospective curators the opportunity to
view the property in order to determine a curator’s level of interest in the curatorship and
(2) provide sufficient access so that a prospective curator is able to submit a Proposed
Restoration Schedule, which will be used as part of the City’s evaluation process.
The City recognizes that the submitted Restoration Schedules are preliminary and that
additional access will likely be required by the selected curator in order to refine and
finalize a mutually agreed upon Restoration Schedule by the City and the selected
curator. The City will provide additional access to the selected curator as part of the
residential curatorship agreement/lease negotiation process.
11. Question: What is the City’s anticipated timeline to select a curator?
Answer: Please see page 18 in the RFP. Generally, upon receiving the proposals and
initially screening for responsiveness, the proposals will be forwarded to an evaluation
panel that will independently review each proposal. The timing to complete the review of
the proposals is unknown at this time due to the unknown quantity and volume of
proposals. It is currently estimated that the evaluation panel will then meet to rank the
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proposals, and develop a short-list of most qualified curators to continue in the selection
process. This is tentatively scheduled by late January or early February 2019.
Selection steps following the short-listing may include: seeking clarifying information
from proposers, interviewing the most qualified curators, and/or presenting the
evaluation panel’s short-list recommendations to the City Council, tentatively in early
March. The remaining selection process will be determined at that time.
It is hoped that the best qualified curator is identified, all terms of a Lease Agreement are
successfully negotiated, and the Agreement is approved by the City Council no later
than June 2019.
Building Conditions, Assessments, Maintenance and Renovation Requirements
12. Question: Can you provide more information about the work that needs to be done, and
the expectations of the City as to the level and timeline of renovations?
Answer: The RFP, starting on page 8, outlines the repairs that must be made to the
buildings critical systems. The City expects the required upgrades to the building’s
critical systems be completed within five (5) years and that a minimum annual
investment of $60,000 will be made by the selected curator as outlined within the RFP
beginning on page 12. Other supplemental renovations are strongly encouraged and
may be made at any time over the twenty (20) year term of the Lease Agreement.
13. Question: Is the Mansion serviceable in its present condition?
Answer: The building itself is considered to be “serviceable” in its present conditions,
but certainly, the critical systems have exceeded their useful life and may be unreliable.
There is some settling of the foundation (see Question #20); but the windows are secure
and operable, and there are no known roof leaks at this time. The electrical and
heating/ventilation systems are operational, but need to be brought up to current
California Building Code and City standards. The plumbing system has limited
functionality and also needs to be updated in accordance with the current Building Code.
14. Question: The RFP states that the systems need to be updated in compliance with
State and local codes before the curator will be allowed to move in. Please clarify if the
City will allow the curator to move in and use the existing systems while the upgrades
and restoration work is taking place?
Answer: For a dwelling to be considered “habitable,” it needs to be weather tight, have
water and sewer service, and the capability of maintaining 68 degrees Fahrenheit. The
Mansion is a single family dwelling so theoretically, if it can meet the weather, water,
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sewer, and heat tests, then it can be lived in while work is in progress. If water or sewer
are disconnected during the upgrade work, the curator would need to vacate until the
systems are restored. Prior to moving in, the water should be tested for lead.
15. Question: Will the City or the County be the responsible permitting agency? Will the
curator be required to pull permits and pay fees?
Answer: The City of Carmel will be the responsible permitting agency. Yes, the curator
will be required to pull permits; however, all City permit fees will be waived for the
curator. Depending on the types of restoration, the curator may need to acquire permits
or approvals from other agencies, and in those cases, the curator will be required to pay
applicable fees directly to those agencies.
16. Question: May I have a copy of the Architectural Resources Group (ARG) report?
Answer: A copy of the report has been posted on the City’s website at
https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
17. Question: The 2009 ARG report estimates the roof at $120,000. I understand that there
has been some roof work completed, was that an entire tile removal and new
waterproofing and flashing or just a partial re-roof and patch?
Answer: The recent roofing repairs consisted only of patching a few isolated areas
where leaks were encountered.
18. Question: Does the City have additional roof tiles stored offsite? If so, approximately
how many?
Answer: No. The firm of Gladden McBean manufactured the roof tiles that were recently
used, under the brand of Berkeley Style Clay Roof Tiles.
19. Question: What is the source of the cost estimates for the renovation and addition of
critical systems as set forth on Page 8 of the RFP?
Answer: The Architectural Resources Group (ARG) prepared a cost estimate for a
renovation of the Mansion in 2009. That estimate is available on-line on the City’s
website at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
The rough, order-of-magnitude cost estimates included in the Request for Proposals was
intended to cover only critical systems (electrical, mechanical, plumbing, structural, etc.)
and were provided by City staff with expertise in building construction and facility
maintenance; however, these estimates were for provided for general information only
and should not be construed as actual cost estimates nor expenditure expectations.
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The sprinkler estimate was based on the average price per square foot for fire sprinkler
installations within the Monterey Peninsula area.
20. Question: It is my understanding that a Cost Estimate (other than the 2009 ARG report)
was done several years later that was substantially lower. Is that estimate available?
Answer: The 2011 appraisal estimated essentially the same repairs and renovations as
identified in the ARG report at approximately $800,000.
21. Question: There may be a need for significant foundation work in order to mitigate water
intrusion issues. Is there an estimate for that work?
Answer: The need for “significant” foundation work for the majority of the building is not
anticipated. The southeast corner of the building has been surveyed for possible
movement for over 6 months, and very slight movement (⅛”) has been indicated. Interior
basement wall(s) in this area of the building also indicate bulging due to possible wet
and/or clay soil conditions. It is anticipated that substantial foundation repairs or
strengthening of the building will be required, but only in this corner of the mansion.
22. Question: The RFP states that the curator will commission a home inspection report
and a Preservation Plan. Just to be clear, is it the City’s expectation that these reports
will be commissioned before or after the curator has been selected?
Answer: The Home Inspection Report and Preservation Plan will be commissioned and
coordinated by the selected curator and will occur after the curator is selected. The
selected curator may commission these reports prior to the execution of the residential
curatorship lease agreement at the sole risk of the curator. Copies of these draft reports
and plans shall be made available to the City for review, and City comments shall be
incorporated into the final reports and plans.
23. Question:
a. I noticed fairly new copper water piping. Was that recently replaced from the
meter to the interior of the house?
b. It looks like there is a combination of copper and wood gutters. What is the City’s
expectation in terms of replacement- wood or copper?
Answer: a. The City-installed copper piping was limited to only the downstairs restroom
(closest to the kitchen) and to the kitchen sink.
b. The gutters are both copper and wood, and some repairs have been made recently on
both materials. The City expects any new/replacement gutters to be replaced in kind
(copper or wood), or all may be in copper.
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With regard to replacement of the gutters, it depends on whether these are considered a
character defining feature of the resource. The City’s Historic Resources Board will
evaluate proposed modifications to the exterior, but it is likely that there will be some
flexibility on the proposed design.
24. Question: Did the residents of the Flanders Mansion have a laundry room? If so,
where?
Answer: See page 85 of the following link for a floor plan that identifies a “laundry
room”: https://ci.carmel.ca.us/sites/main/files/fileattachments/attachment_1_the_flanders_mansion_habs_documentation.pdf
There are no existing hookups for a washer and dryer. Preliminarily, it appears that the
best places to install hookups for laundry facilities would be in the laundry room
identified in the floor plan above or down in the basement.
25. Question: What is in the outside crawl space by the chimney?
Answer: There is a crawl space from the side of the house into a box in the living room,
adjacent to the fire place. The box in the living room was covered by the City to ensure
no one could enter the mansion through the crawl space. The box appears to have been
used to store firewood.
26. Question: Are there any historic photographs of the interior and/or any other
documentation that shows which features, such as crown molding, etc. are original?
Answer: No. Unfortunately, the City does not have any photographs or other
documentation pertaining to the historic interior of the Mansion.
27. Question: Is it possible to obtain soft copies of the photographs that were included
within the HABS report?
Answer: Digital black and white copies of the HABS report have been added to the
City’s website at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
28. Question:
a. What amount of modernization of the floor plan (moving interior walls) will be
allowed? As an example there is a Bedroom 2, Area 7x11 and Master Dressing
that are adjacent to the Master Bedroom Suite that could be incorporated into the
master bath or closet to make a much more elaborate suite.
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b. What amount of interior modernization will be allowed? For example, may the
kitchen be updated or is the City requiring that the Mansion’s interior be restored
to the 1920s era?
Answer: a. In evaluating projects to historic resources, the City uses criteria outlined in
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation. Interior modifications are not
subject to these historic standards; however, as one of two nationally recognized historic
properties owned by the City, the City’s preference is for proposals that adhere to the
original floor plan to the extent feasible. The City will consider minor floor plan
alterations that do not significantly change the layout and the characteristics of the
Mansion, such as moving of non-load bearing interior walls on the second floor and the
moving of interior walls pertaining to the bedrooms on the first floor. Such alterations will
be subject to the approval of the City Community Planning and Building Director and/or
Building Official and may also be referred to the City’s Historic Resources Board for
approval at the discretion of the City Community Planning and Building Director.
Modifications to the exterior of the building and/or grounds are subject to the Secretary
of Interior's Standards, and in most instances, will require approval by the City’s Historic
Resources Board.
b. The City uses the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation for evaluating
modifications to historic resources. The City typically only evaluates exterior
modifications for compliance with the Secretary’s Standards; however, interior
modifications should be sensitive to the context of the building and should protect the
Mansion’s important historic fabric. That said, the City intends to partner with the curator
to allow the curator to make interior renovations that provide for reasonable standards of
living, such as having more modern kitchen, bathrooms, and lighting, but the City may
not support modernization of a significant portion of the interior.
29. Question:
a. With its [the Mansion’s] historical designation, isn’t it exempt from interior Fire
Sprinklers?
b. Given the fire sprinkler requirement, is the water supply to the property sufficient
to accommodate a fire sprinkler system?
Answer: a. There are no code requirements to install a sprinkler system unless the
building is remodeled and the work affects over 50% of the total linear length of all walls
(internal and external). A proposed remodel to the Mansion, as conditioned by the City,
will not reach this threshold. However, as the Mansion is a valuable City asset, the City
is requiring that the prospective curator’s Restoration Schedule include the installation of
fire sprinklers.
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b. The City is currently working on obtaining information regarding the water supply and
will provide this information at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals when it
becomes available.
30. Question:
a. Several people have expressed some concern that if the Mansion will be open
periodically to the public, there may need to be a seismic up fit to the structure.
That is a potential “budget buster.” Can you or someone else at the City
comment on that?
b. If the Mansion is open to the public, even one or two times a year, does it need to
be retrofitted to meet ADA standards?
Answer: a. Only new construction or reconfigurations within the mansion would need to
be designed to meet current Building Code, including seismic provisions. The City does
not envision the need to upgrade the entire mansion to meet current seismic loads.
b. Only new construction or reconfigurations within the mansion would need to be
designed to meet current Building Code, including ADA provisions. The City does not
envision the need to upgrade the entire mansion to meet current accessibility
requirements.
31. Question:
a. Another budget related question has been raised regarding the possible
necessity to pay construction labor pursuant to the California “Prevailing Wage”
Law. It is my understanding that the PW law is only applicable to “public works”
paid from City funds or work provided by a private party when such work is under
the “direction and supervision” of the City. Clearly the work contemplated is not
being paid from City funds.
b. And direction and supervision in the curator’s scenario would presumably be
limited to the normal building official’s oversight as to code compliance. Correct?
Answer: a. Although California Labor Code section 1720(a)(1) defines “public works” to
include construction, alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work done under
contract and paid for in whole or in part out of public funds, section 1720 goes on to
state that “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” includes not only the payment
of money or the equivalent of money by a political subdivision such as a city, but also
transfer of an asset of value by the political subdivision for less than fair market price
(subsection (b)(3)) or the waiver by the political subdivision of fees, costs, rents, etc. that
would normally be required in connection with the public works contract (subsection
(b)(4)). Allowing a curator to occupy the premises rent-free is a transfer of possessory
rights in the Mansion at less than fair market price and/or a waiver of rent that would
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ordinarily be required. For those reasons, potential curators should assume that
prevailing wage requirements will apply.
b. The Building Official’s oversight will be limited to the issuance of permits and
scheduled inspections to ensure compliance with the Building Codes and City
Standards. However, other City staff will be monitoring the curator’s performance and
compliance with the terms of a residential curatorship agreement, including reviewing
the documentation regarding the annual minimum financial investment and the progress
made toward the completion of the Restoration Schedule within five (5) years.
32. Question: Is the City requiring the use of local contractors?
Answer: The City has a preference for the use of local consultants, contractors and
subcontractors; however, points are neither awarded nor reduced if non-local contractors
are also used. The only requirements for consultants, contractors and subcontractors of
the curator include: (1) contractors are licensed by the State of California; (2) contractors
either have, or will obtain, a City business license, (3) contractors meet the City’s
insurance requirements, and (4) contractors provide certified payroll regarding prevailing
wages when required.
33. Question: Cost of Utilities
a. Water: What is a reasonable estimate of the monthly expense for a hypothetical
family of four?
b. Electricity: Same question, but factoring in the size of the property.
c. Gas: Same question.
d. Trash: Does the City bill residents for this service? Or do residents pay private
companies such as Waste Management directly?
Answer: The City does not provide utilities directly to residents and is unable to estimate
the cost of these services for the residential use of the Mansion given the variables
related to usage patterns. Prospective curators are advised to contact the utility
providers directly for estimated operating costs.
a. Cal-Am is the water purveyor for the area. https://amwater.com/caaw/customerservice-billing/billing-payment-info/water-rates/monterey-district
b. Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) provides natural gas and electric service.
https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/rate-plans/rate-planoptions/understanding-rate-plans/understanding-rate-plans.page
c. Residents subscribe to trash services directly with the City’s franchised hauler,
Green Waste Recovery.
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http://www.greenwaste.com/sites/default/files/Carmel%20Residential%20Rates%
20July%202018%20-%20June2019.pdf
d. Sewer service is provided by the Carmel Area Wastewater District
(http://cawd.org). The City currently pays an annual assessment of $767.84.
34. Question:
a. I thought the RFP stated that the curator is responsible for removing ivy from the
Mansion. Please clarify if all of the ivy must be removed, including the existing
ivy on the Mansion facing the driveway or if the ivy just needs to be maintained?
b. When did the City remove the existing ivy and why?
Answer: a. The 2009 Architectural Resources Group report included “trim ivy and other
plant material off the walls and gutters as needed” as part of the required building
exterior work. The City will allow a limited amount of ivy on the facade of the house for
decorative purposes.
However, the curator will be responsible for maintaining the ivy and other plant materials
so as not to create habitat for rodents and other pests nor allow root intrusion into the
exterior walls and foundation.
b. The City hired the firm Town and Country Gardening to maintain the ivy, and the City
would expect the curator to continue to maintain the ivy. As much of the ivy on the south
side of the Mansion was dying, City staff recently removed the ivy.
35. Question:
a. What level of maintenance of the grounds is required?
b. Do the grounds also have to be restored and if so, is there a landscape plan or
other documentation showing the original landscape design?
Answer: a. The curator shall maintain the grounds in at least at the current conditions or
better.
b. There are no known landscaping plans or other documents showing an original
landscape design. The City is not requiring the grounds to be restored back to the
original condition.
36. Question: Regarding landscape maintenance, can a person in the City’s maintenance
division offer an estimate for basic service that it or a third party is now providing?
Answer: The City hired the firm Town and Country Gardening to provide basic
landscape maintenance services for about $300 per month. City staff provides
supplemental landscaping maintenance work on an as-needed basis. Costs for ongoing
landscape maintenance would be borne by the curator.
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37. Question:
a. Is the water meter to the house separate than the water meter to the grounds?
b. Who pays for the water meter to the grounds?
Answer: a. Yes. The water meter for the Mansion is outside near the kitchen. There is a
separate meter for irrigation into the Lester Rowntree Native Plant Garden.
b. The City pays, and will continue to pay for the garden water meter. The curator would
be responsible for the cost of water service to the Mansion.
38. Question: I noticed during my inspection evidence of a landscape irrigation system.
Given the water conservation issues in Carmel, how does one reconcile the water usage
that will be needed to restore the lawn and other landscape materials?
Answer: The existing irrigation system and its deficiencies at this time are not
considered a critical system for the required renovations. It is anticipated that the
selected curator would repair the irrigation system as necessary to maintain the system
in at least the same condition, or better. Per City requirements, seventy-five percent
(75%) of new or replacement landscaping shall consist of native, drought-tolerant plants.
The City is not requiring the lawn to be restored at this time.
39. Question: For pest control, perhaps the City is currently handling this service in-house.
If so, is there a cost that the person responsible can attribute to that service? If not,
what is the City paying for that service?
Answer: The City hired the firm Ailing House for pest control services on an as-needed
basis. There have been times in the past when pest control was needed for both indoors
and adjacent to the mansion outdoors. Routine monthly service costs about $720 a year;
however, costs vary based on the frequency of service and materials used.
40. Question: Who is responsible for repairing and maintaining the driveway- the curator or
the City?
Answer: The curator is responsible for maintaining the portion of the driveway on the
Flanders property. This includes the roundabout near the mansion and the driveway as it
extends to its most northerly extent in the horizontal curve towards Hatton Road.
The City is responsible for maintaining the portion of the driveway located on City
property, which is approximately the first 350 feet of the driveway extending from Hatton
Road to the northerly most extent in the horizontal curve.
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Property and Mitigation Measures
41. Question: What abuts the property on its four sides, how close is it to a main road, and
what type of road that might be?
Answer: The Mansion is located within, and surrounded by, the Mission Trail Nature
Preserve (MTNP), which is a City-owned and maintained park with passive recreation
(hiking, walking, biking and bird watching). Access into the east side of the MTNP lies
with the County of Monterey. The driveway to the property is connected to a residential
street, which is about 2 miles from a major highway (US 1).
42. Question: Is there a map that shows the trails within the Mission Trail Nature Preserve
and the trails proximity to the Mansion?
Answer: A map of the trails in relation to the Mansion is available at
https://ci.carmel.ca.us/sites/main/files/file-attachments/missiontrailnaturepreserve.pdf
43. Question:
a. Will the curator be allowed to place a gate on the driveway?
b. If so, where?
c. Does the driveway need to allow public access and if so, could the gate have a
code to allow public access when the Preserve is open?
d. When is the Preserve open/closed?
Answer: a-c. Figure 4.6.-1 referenced in mitigation measure 4.1-4 (and Question 47)
includes a reference to the location of the gate. However, the location and design is
subject to the discretion of the City and the Planning Commission (or other board).
d. While there are parking restrictions along the driveway leading into the Preserve, the
Preserve itself does not have opening and closure hours.
44. Question:
a. Will the curator be allowed to install a fence?
b. Is the City installing a fence prior to the curator’s occupancy?
Answer: The curator can potentially install a fence subject to design review and City
approval. The fence height will need to be low enough to still allow a public view of the
mansion. The Mitigation Monitoring Program adopted with the EIR provides several
guidelines for the potential design and location of a fence. Installation and maintenance
of the fence would be the responsibility of the curator.
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45. Question: Does the City expect that the curator will allow the public to park anywhere
on the .83-acre Mansion parcel?
Answer: No. The City, in consultation with the selected curator, will identify specific
areas for public parking.
46. Question:
a. Regarding mitigation measure 4.1-2, where are the “existing scenic vistas”?
Reference is made to Figure 4.1.5, which does not appear to be in the RFP
package.
b. Regarding mitigation measure 4.1-3, where are the two (2) public viewing areas?
c. Do “future exterior changes” include all landscape changes?
d. Is the preservation of the “existing tree line” intended to preserve curator privacy?
Answer: a. Per Mitigation Measure 4.1-2, “The area of the scenic easements shall
include the adjacent meadow area located south/southwesterly from the Flanders
property as well as the two (2) viewing areas identified in Figure 4.1-5, which has been
posted on the City’s website at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
b. Figure 4.1-5, Proposed Scenic Easements” identifies the public viewing areas.
c. No, the reference to “future exterior changes” pertains to the existing tree line and
preserving scenic vistas for the public viewing areas.
d. No, the preservation of the tree line is intended to preserve scenic vistas for the
viewing public.
47. Question:
a. Regarding mitigation measure 4.1.-4, Fence? Figure 4.1-6?
b. The fourth bullet point of 4.1-4 references the installation of a gate to be located
in accordance with Figure 4.1-6. Please provide Figure 4.1-6.
c. The fifth bullet point of 4.1-4 states that, “Landscape treatments and screening
shall be required for portions of the site abutting the Lester Rowntree Arboretum
(see Figure 4.1-6).” It appears that as recently as 2014 there was a long row of
Cypress abutting the Arboretum and above the lawn on the east side of the
house. That row of Cypress has been cut down. Do you have any background on
why those trees were removed?
Answer: a and b. Figure 4.1-6 has been posted to the City’s website at
https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
c. The long row of hedges on the east side of the Mansion was removed in early 2018.
These hedges became overgrown, were half dead, and unsightly. The curator shall
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plant suitable landscaped screening per the mitigation measure. Other trees to the south
and southeast of the Mansion were also removed over the past year because these
trees were either dead or invasive. Invasive trees, ivy, and plant removals will continue
throughout the Mission Trails Nature Preserve in the coming years.
48. Question:
a. Mitigation Measure 4.6-1 states that the City will create “additional public parking”
as depicted in “Figure 4.6-2.” Please provide Figure 4.6-2.
b. The word “additional” suggests that some amount of public parking already
exists. Where is that parking located?
Answer: a. Figure 4.6-2 has been posted to the City’s website at
https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
b. Parking currently is only provided along the sides of the driveway and by the
roundabout portion of the driveway at the front of the Mansion.
49. Question: Regarding mitigation measure 4.2-1, where would I find Appendix A? In the
HABS Documentation?
Answer: The appendices relating to the Biological Assessment referenced in mitigation
measure 4.2-1 has been posted to the City’s website at
https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
50. Question: Regarding mitigation measure 4.2-4, what if pest control finds a family of
Monterey Dusky-Footed Woodrats inside the Flanders Mansion? Contact CDFG (CA
Dept. of Fish & Game)?
Answer: The curator would contact the City’s representative and/or consultant biologist
for advice.
51. Question: Regarding mitigation measure 4.3-2, hasn’t this already been done by PAST
Consultants?
Answer: Yes. The HABS report was prepared by PAST Consultants and was accepted
by the City’s Historic Resources Board.
52. Question: Regarding mitigation measure 4.3-3, if buried cultural resources are
discovered, would the Stop Work Order prevent moving forward with the work on the
house itself?
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Answer: Maybe. A cultural resource finding would temporarily stop the project, or at
least the component of the project that includes excavation or outdoor work. The work
stoppage would not likely apply to interior work.
If cultural resources are discovered, a qualified archaeologist must be retained to assess
the significance of the find and, if necessary, to develop appropriate treatment measures
in consultation with the State Historic Preservation Office.
53. Question:
a. Would the City revise the site aerial in the HABS report to reflect the site
configuration/boundaries after the carve out of the portion of the larger site (~ 1.6
acres) to be used for public parking?
b. Will a map of the .83 site in question by provided?
c. Will a map showing existing vegetation on the .83-acre parcel be provided?
Answer: a. The HABS report can potentially be modified to address changing
circumstances. However, any modification would have to be reviewed by the City’s
Historic Resources Board for approval.
b. The HABS report specifically included the parcel boundary that existed when Flanders
Mansion was submitted to the National Register of Historic Places in 1989. As noted
above in answer a, the HABS can be modified to address changing circumstances. A
map of the .83 site will be an exhibit to a residential curatorship lease agreement.
C. The HABS includes a landscape diagram of existing conditions in January 2014. As
noted above, the HABS report can potentially be modified to address changing
circumstance, subject to approval by the City’s Historic Resources Board. A map or
other documentation that illustrates existing vegetation conditions will be included as an
exhibit to the residential curatorship lease agreement.
54. Question: The RFP does not reference the provisions of the City’s Baseline Biological
Assessment (“BBA”) dated January 20, 2016, as it relates to the curator’s maintenance
requirement regarding the Flanders Mansion parcel (page 9 of RFP), and rehabilitation,
renovation and maintenance of Mansion grounds. (RFP pg. 12). Will this be remedied at
some point in an addendum to the RFP?
Answer: The City is not issuing an addendum to the RFP to reference provisions of the
Baseline Biological Assessment. The City will provide a copy of the Baseline Biological
Assessment to the curator and work with the curator to define the areas that will be
under the curator’s care and the standards for rehabilitation, renovation and
maintenance of the Mansion grounds and include these standards within the residential
curatorship lease agreement.
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55. Question:
a. Will a Preservation Plan for the landscaping be required and will it be required to
take into account the situation of the parcel as it exists today (i.e. now), subject to
modification as called for in the BBA, as opposed what is set forth in the HABS
attached to the RFP, or take into account other historical evidence regarding the
landscaping?
b. Will that landscaping plan then be subject to approval by the HRB?
c. Will the Restoration Plan have to be reviewed by the State of California Historic
Resources Board?
d. What standards will need to be met in the Preservation Plan regarding the
requirements for restoration and maintenance of the landscaping of the .83 acre
Flanders site?
e. Will the Restoration Plan be required to take into account installation of fencing,
rehabilitation (including, potentially, trimming or removal of trees and bushes),
and maintenance of the Lester Rowntree Native Plant Garden and access by
equipment and workers involved in such projects?
f. Over what period of time will the curator be required to install the restored
landscaping of the .83-acre site?
Answer: a. The Preservation Plan is required to contain a detailed history of the
Mansion; a discussion of its historical significance; a comprehensive list of the features
of the building and grounds that contribute to its historical significance; a detailed
description of the current condition of the building and grounds and its integrity relative to
the National Register criteria; a discussion of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for
the Treatment of Historic Properties; and specific standards and recommendations for
the care and treatment of the Flanders Mansion building and grounds. Flanders Mansion
is listed on the National Register due to its architecture and thus landscaping is not likely
to be part of the Preservation Plan. The City is not requiring a curator to restore the
grounds to the original condition. However, the City will require a landscape plan be
prepared by the selected curator and reviewed by the Forest and Beach Commission.
b. As long as the landscaping plan does not change the hardscape features, such as the
stone work planters and circular driveway, then the landscape plan does not need to be
approved by the HRB.
c. Neither the Restoration Plan or the Preservation Plan will be reviewed by the State.
d. The Preservation Plan is required to meet the Secretary of Interior's Standards for the
Treatment of Historic Properties.
e. Neither the Restoration Plan or the Preservation Plan will be required to take into
account rehabilitation and maintenance of the Lester Rowntree Native Plant Garden and
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access to equipment and workers as the purpose of these plans is to outline the work
and treatments that will occur within the Mansion itself. The requirements regarding
maintenance of the grounds and access to the Garden and Preserve by the City and
volunteer groups will be included within the residential curatorship lease agreement.
f. There is no City requirement to restore the landscaping. However, the curator will be
responsible for maintaining the grounds in a standard acceptable to the City (which will
be defined within the residential curatorship lease agreement) for twenty (20) years. The
City will still be required to maintain the Garden and the Preserve during the curatorship.
56. Question: The CDP incorporates “Mitigation Measures”, including relating to “public
parking”. The RFP points out that the public parking “mitigation measure” (4.6-1) will
require the City to “...develop a parking plan to provide at least 3 parking spaces along
the existing driveway within Mission Trail Nature Preserve...” “...prior to the lease and
occupancy of the Flanders Mansion.” The RFP does not point out that any such parking
plan will have to be the subject of a Coastal Development Permit, issued by the City
Planning Commission (after environmental review) and subject to review by the
California Coastal Commission, as any such parking area would be within an
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area. The RFP does not point out that there have
been no recent studies of current or projected public parking demands on the Flanders
Mansion parcel, which would seem to be necessary if development of a “parking plan” to
provide for loss of public parking places on the Flanders Mansion parcel, required by the
Mitigation Measures, is to be realistic. The RFP does not state whether or not a
handicapped parking space will be required. Will these matters be pointed out at some
point in an addendum to the RFP?
Answer: The purpose of the RFP is to solicit proposals from individuals interested in
entering into a residential curatorship lease agreement with the City for the long-term
use of the Mansion as a single-family residence. The comments raised pertain to the
requirements of the City to provide public parking prior to the occupancy of the Mansion
by a curator. While these comments illustrate that there are mitigation measures that will
take time for the City to implement, the City does not believe these comments warrant a
need to issue an addendum to the RFP.
57. Question: The CDP does not address the question of applicability of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) which may be occasioned by modifications of Mission Trail Nature
Preserve (including the Flanders Mansion and parcel).
a. Are provisions of the ADA applicable to the curatorship terms and to the
modifications to the Mission Trail Nature Preserve occasioned by its terms (i.e.
changes in locations of trails, installation of new trails and access)?
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b. Will new paths, which will be required if the curatorship goes into effect, require
the issuance of a CDP because of their placement in the ESHA?
Answer: These questions pertain to the implementation of mitigation measures by the
City and the process for the issuance of a Coastal Development Permit. The City is
continuing to researching these questions and the information will be posted to the City’s
website at https://ci.carmel.ca.us/post/request-proposals
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